MOBILARM LIMITED
(TO BE RENAMED “JAXSTA LIMITED")
ACN 106 513 580
SUPPLEMENTARY PROSPECTUS

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

This is a supplementary prospectus (Supplementary Prospectus) which supplements the
prospectus dated 7 September 2018 (Prospectus) issued by Mobilarm Limited (to be
renamed, Jaxsta Limited”) (ACN 106 513 580) (Company).

This Supplementary Prospectus is dated 28 September 2018 and was lodged with the ASIC
on that date. The ASIC, the ASX and their respective officers take no responsibility for the
contents of this Supplementary Prospectus.

This Supplementary Prospectus should be read together with the Prospectus. Other than
as set out below, all details in relation to the Prospectus remain unchanged. Terms and
abbreviations defined in the Prospectus have the same meaning in this Supplementary
Prospectus. If there is a conflict between the Prospectus and this Supplementary
Prospectus, this Supplementary Prospectus will prevail.

This Supplementary Prospectus will be issued with the Prospectus as an electronic
prospectus, copies of which can be downloaded from the website of the Company at
www.mobilarm.com.

This is an important document and should be read in its entirety. If you do not understand
it, you should consult your professional advisers without delay.

1. PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT

The Supplementary Prospectus has been prepared to provide investors with
updated information in relation to the Prospectus, specifically:

(a) providing an updated Investigating Accountant's Report from the
Investigating Accountant which replaces the Investigating Accountant’s
Report in the Prospectus in its entirety and now includes:

(i) the historical Statement of Financial Position of Joxsta as at
30 June 2016, 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2017; and

(i) the historical Statement of Profit and Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income of Joaxsta for the period from
incorporation on 27 May 2016 to 30 June 2016, year ended
30 June 2017 and half year ended 31 December 2017;

(b) clarifying existing disclosure around the use of funds;
(c) providing an updated timetable; and
(d) correcting certain typographical errors Prospectus.

This Supplementary Prospectus dated 28 September 2018 is intended to be read with the Prospectus dated 7
September 2018 issued by Mobilarm Limited (to be renamed ‘Jaxsta Limited’) (ACN 106 513 580). 1



2.1

2.2

AMENDMENTS TO THE PROSPECTUS
Indicative timetable

The Indicative timetable is amended to change the Closing Date. The new
indicate fimetable is as follows:

Lodgement of Prospectus with the ASIC 7 September 2018
Opening Date of the Offer 7 September 2018
Closing Date for Offer 31 October 2018
Issue of Shares under the Offer and Securities to be 6 November 2018

issued pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement

Seftlement of the Acquisition 6 November 2018
Closing Date of the Cleansing Offer 8 November 2018
Dispatch of Holding Statements 15 November 2018
Re-instatement to quotation of Securities (including 16 November 2018

Shares issued under the Offer) on ASX

*The above dates are indicative only and may change without notice. The Company reserves
the right to extend the Closing Date or close the Offer early without prior notice. The Company
also reserves the right not to proceed with any of the Offer at any time before the issue of Shares
to Applicants.

A The above stated date for Settlement of the Acquisition is only a good faith estimate by the
Directors and may have to be extended.

Section 3.6 - Use of funds

Although no material change is made to the table in the use of funds, the
Company notes that, as set out in Note 2 to the table in Section 3.6, funds shown
as ‘Existing cash reserves’ are funds to be received prior to the re-instatement of
the Company to trading on ASX from the sale of the MRT Business, being the first
$1,000,000 (payable on completion of the disposal) of a total consideration of
$6,000,000.

As shown in the financial records set out in Section 7, as at 31 December 2017, the
Company had $381,532 in cash and cash equivalents. In the intervening period,
the Company has incurred further costs. The table in Section 3.6 outlines the funds
available to the Company at the re-instatement to frading on the ASX, including
funds raised under the Offer.

Further, as set out in Note 2, the Company has entered into an agreement to
dispose of its MRT Business. The terms of the sale of the MRT Business are
summarised in Section 9.4 of the Prospectus. The sale of the MRT Business includes
$5,000,000 of deferred consideration. The use of funds table does not include that
deferred consideration, although the Company reasonably believes that it should
be entitled to expect that those funds will be received based on the confract it
has entered info as and when they are due to be received (summarised in Section
9.4 of the Prospectus). Investors should note the risk factor outlined in Sections 2
D(f) and Section 6.2(d) of the Prospectus in relation to the receipt of that deferred
consideration.

This Supplementary Prospectus dated 28 September 2018 is intended to be read with the Prospectus dated 7
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23 Section 2 F - Financial Information
The first paragraph of Section 2 F of the Prospectus is replaced with the following:
The audited financial statements of Jaxsta, as well as the pro forma financial
accounts for the combined entity as at 31 December 2017 are set out in Section
7 as part of the Investigating Accountant’s Report.
24 Section 4.14 - Financial Information
Section 4.14 of the Prospectus is replaced with the following:
(a) The Investigating Accountant’s Report contained in Section 7 of this
Prospectus sets out:
(i) the audited Statement of Financial Position of Jaxsta as at
30 June 2016, 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2017;
(ii) the audited Statement of Profit and Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income of Jaxsta for the period from 27 May 2016
fo 30 June 2016, year ended 30 June 2017 and half year ended
31 December 2017; and
(iii) the reviewed pro-forma Statement of Financial Position of
Mobilarm  (after Settlement of the Acquisition) as at
31 December 2017.
Investors are urged to read the Investigating Accountant’s Report in full.
The full financial statements for Mobilarm for its financial years ended
30 June 2016 and 30 June 2017, which include the notes to the financial
statements, can be found from Mobilarm’s ASX announcements platform
OoNn WWW.Qsx.com.au.
25 Section 7 - Investigating Accountant’s Report
The Investigating Accountant’'s Report included in Section 7 of the Prospectus is
deleted and replaced with the revised Investigating Accountant’s Report set out
in Annexure A to this Supplementary Prospectus.
2.6 Typographical errors
(a) References to "DKF PA Partners” as the auditor of Jaxsta in the Corporate
Directory and Section 10.8 are deleted and replaced with “PA Audit Pty
Ltd".
(b) References to “Elderton Capital” as the Investigating Accountant in
Section 10.8 are deleted and replaced with "Greenwich & Co Audit Pty
Ltd".
3. NEW APPLICATIONS

The Company confirms that since the lodgement of the Prospectus no
Applications have been accepted by the Company that would require the
Company to consider allowing those applicants to withdraw their Application
under Section 724(2) (b) of the Corporations Act.

This Supplementary Prospectus dated 28 September 2018 is intended to be read with the Prospectus dated 7
September 2018 issued by Mobilarm Limited (to be renamed ‘Jaxsta Limited’) (ACN 106 513 580). 3
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New applications for Shares on and from the date of this Supplementary
Prospectus must be made using the Supplementary Application Form attached
to or accompanying this Supplementary Prospectus. The Supplementary
Application Form contains detailed instructions on how it is to be completed.

Applications made on the Application Form attached to or accompanying the
Prospectus on or after the date of this Supplementary Prospectus will not be valid.

4. CONSENTS

The Company confirms that as at the date of this Supplementary Prospectus,
each of the parties that have been named as having consented to being named
in the Prospectus have not withdrawn that consent.

Greenwich & Co Audit Pty Ltd has given its written consent to being named as
Investigating Accountant of the Company in this Supplementary Prospectus and
to the inclusion of the Investigating Accountant’s Report in this Supplementary
Prospectus in the form and contextin which the information and report is included.
Greenwich & Co Audit Pty Ltd has not withdrawn its consent prior to lodgement
of this Supplementary Prospectus with the ASIC.

PA Audit Pty Ltd has given its written consent to being named in this
Supplementary Prospectus as the auditor of Jaxsta and to the inclusion of the
audited financial statements for Jaxsta (as described in Section 4.14 of the
Prospectus (as amended by the Supplementary Prospectus)) in the Investigating
Accountant’s Report and has not withdrawn its consent prior to lodgement of this
Supplementary Prospectus with the ASIC.

Walker Wayland Audit (WA) Pty Ltd has given its written consent to being named
in this Supplementary Prospectus as the auditor of Mobilarm and to the inclusion
of the reviewed financial statements for Mobilarm (as described in Section 4.14 of
the Prospectus (as amended by the Supplementary Prospectus)) in the
Investigating Accountant’s Report and has not withdrawn its consent prior to
lodgement of this Supplementary Prospectus with the ASIC.

5. DIRECTORS’ AUTHORISATION

This Supplementary Prospectus is issued by the Company and its issue has been
authorised by a resolution of the Directors.

In accordance with Section 720 of the Corporations Act, each Director has
consented to the lodgement of this Supplementary Prospectus with the ASIC.

Robert “Ken” Gaunt

Director and Chief Executive Officer
For and on behalf of

MOBILARM LIMITED

This Supplementary Prospectus dated 28 September 2018 is intended to be read with the Prospectus dated 7
September 2018 issued by Mobilarm Limited (to be renamed ‘Jaxsta Limited’) (ACN 106 513 580). 4



ANNEXURE A - INVESTIGATING ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT

This Supplementary Prospectus dated 28 September 2018 is intended to be read with the Prospectus dated 7
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25 September 2018

The Directors
Mobilarm Limited

2/3 Roberts Street
Osborne Park WA 6916

Dear Sirs
Investigating Accountant’s Report
1. Introduction

The directors of Mobilarm Limited (“Mobilarm”) have requested Greenwich & Co Audit Pty Ltd (“Greenwich & Co”) to
prepare an Investigating Accountant’s Report (“Report”) for inclusion in a prospectus dated on or around 7 September
2018 (“Prospectus”), relating to, among other things:

e Enteringinto a binding agreement to dispose of its 100% interest in its main subsidiary Marine Rescue Technologies
Ltd (“MRT”) for a total consideration of $6,000,000 with $1,000,000 being payable on completion, the remaining
$5,000,000 being payable as follows: $1,000,000 on the 15t anniversary of the date of completion and the remaining
$4,000,000 on the 2™ anniversary of completion.

e Entering into an agreement to purchase the remaining 80% of the share capital of Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd, not
already owned by Mobilarm, with the consideration for the acquisition being the issue of a maximum of 115,420,126
fully paid shares in the company, plus the issue of 2,000,000 fully paid shares in the company to settle shareholder
loans currently owed by Jaxsta and 408,000 fully paid ordinary shares in the company to the Jaxsta Warrant Holders.

Further details of the above and associated transactions are listed in Note 2 of Appendix 1 to this Report. All amounts

stated in this report are in Australian Dollars unless otherwise indicated. All the terms used in this Report have the same

meaning as the terms used and defined in the Prospectus unless otherwise defined in this Report.

2. Scope
Greenwich & Co has been engaged by the Directors of Mobilarm to review the following (“Financial Information”):

e Historical Statement of Financial Position of Mobilarm as at 31 December 2017 and Historical Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income of Mobilarm for the period then ended (“the Mobilarm Historical
Financial Information”);

e Historical Statement of Financial Position of Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd and its subsidiaries ("Jaxsta") fas at 30 June
2016, 30 June 2017 and for 31 December 2017 and the Historical Statement of Profit and Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income of Jaxtsa for the period 27 May 2016 to 30 June 2016, the year ended 30 June 2017 and
for the period ending 31 December 2017 (“the Jaxsta Historical Financial Information”).(See Appendix 2)

e Pro-forma Statement of Financial Position of Mobilarm following the various transactions as set out above
(“Pro-Forma Financial Information”).

The Mobilarm Historical Financial Information has been prepared in accordance with the stated basis of preparation,
being the recognition and measurement principles contained in Australian Accounting Standards and Mobilarm’s
adopted accounting policies. The Pro-Forma Financial Information has been derived from the Historical Financial
Information referred to above, after adjusting for transactions and assumptions, including significant transactions
subsequent to 31 December 2017, as if they had occurred at 31 December 2017. These transactions and assumptions
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are detailed in Note 2 of Appendix 1. Due to its nature, the Pro-Forma Financial Information does not represent
Mobilarm’s actual or prospective financial position or financial performance.

The Historical Financial Information and Pro-Forma Financial Information is presented in the Prospectus in an
abbreviated form, insofar as it does not include all of the presentation and disclosures required by Australian Accounting
Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements applicable to general purpose financial reports
prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001.

The Mobilarm Historical Financial Information is based on the Financial Statements of Mobilarm for the period ended
31 December 2017 that were reviewed by Walker Wayland Audit (WA) Pty Ltd who issued an unqualified opinion on
them. The audit report contained an emphasis of matter relating to the use of the going concern basis of preparation
in the financial statements.

The Jaxsta Historical Financial Information is based on the Financial Statements of Jaxsta for the periods ended 30
June 2016, 30 June 2017, and 31 December 2017 that were audited by PA Audit Pty Ltd who issued an
unqualified opinion on them. The audit report contained an emphasis of matter relating to the Basis of Accounting.

This Report does not address the rights attaching to the securities to be issued in accordance with the Prospectus, nor
the risks associated with the investment. We have not been requested to consider the prospects for Mobilarm, the
securities on offer and related pricing issues, nor the merits and risks associated with becoming a shareholder and
accordingly, have not done so, nor do we purport to do so. We accordingly, take no responsibility for those matters or
any other matter or omission in the Prospectus, other than the responsibility for this Report. The risk factors are set out
in Section 4 of the Prospectus.

3. Background
The Company was admitted to the official list of the ASX on 21 September 2010 (ASX Code: MBO).

The principal activities of the Company relate to the research and development, manufacture, service and sale or rental
of Man Overboard Safety Systems.

The Company is currently in the process of disposing of its major subsidiary Marine Rescue Technology (“MRT”)
and acquiring Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd. Jaxsta's principal activity is the music database platforms.

4. Responsibility for the Financial Information

The directors of Mobilarm are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Mobilarm Historical Financial
Information and the Pro-Forma Financial Information, including the selection and determination of the Pro-Forma
adjustments. They are also responsible for all assumptions, judgements and estimates, used in the Historical Financial
Information and included in the Pro-Forma Financial Information.

This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation of the Historical and
Pro-Forma Financial Information that is free from material misstatement which is due to fraud and error, selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The directors of Mobilarm are also responsible for all information contained within the Prospectus.

5.  Our Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express a limited assurance conclusion on the Financial Information based on the procedures
performed and the evidence we have obtained. We have conducted our review engagement in accordance with
Australian Standard on Assurance Engagements (ASAE) 3450 Assurance Engagements involving Corporate Fundraisings
and/or Prospective Financial Information.

In connection with the review, we made such enquiries and performed such procedures as we, in our professional
judgement, considered reasonable in the circumstances.

A review consists of making enquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying
analytical and other review procedures. These procedures do not provide all the evidence that would be required in an
audit, thus the level of assurance provided is less than that given in an audit report. For the purposes of this Report, we
have not performed an audit and accordingly do not express an audit opinion.



Our engagement did not involve updating or re-issuing any previously issued audit or review report on any financial
information used as a source of the Financial Information.

6. Conclusion
Historical Financial Information
Conclusion

Based on our review, which was not an audit, nothing has come to our attention which would cause us to believe that

the Mobilarm Historical Financial Information, as shown in abbreviated form in Appendix 1 to this Report, and
comprising:

- The Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income of Mobilarm for the period ended 31
December 2017; and

- The Statement of Financial Position of Mobilarm as at 31 December 2017;

is not presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with the stated basis of preparation, as described in

Note 3 of Appendix 1.

Based on our review, which was not an audit, nothing has come to our attention which would cause us to believe that
the Jaxsta Historical Financial Information, as shown in abbreviated form in Appendix 2 to this Report, and comprising:

- The Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income of Jaxsta for the period 15 August to
30 June 2016, year ended 30 June 2017 and half year ended 31 December 2017; and

- The Statement of Financial Position of Jaxsta as at 30 June 2016, 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2017
is not presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with the state basis of preparation as
described the Accounting Policies of the Jaxsta Financial Statements, included in Appendix 3.

Pro-Forma Financial Information

Conclusion

Based on our review, which was not an audit, nothing has come to our attention which would cause us to believe that
the Pro-forma Financial Information, comprising the Pro-Forma Statement of Financial Position of Mobilarm as at 31
December 2017 is not presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with the stated basis of preparation, as
described in Notes 2 and 3 of Appendix 1.

Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying our conclusion, we draw attention to Note 3 of Appendix 1, which indicates that the going concern
basis is dependent upon the pro-forma transactions and assumptions as set out in Note 2 of Appendix 1 occurring. These
conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about Mobilarm’s ability to
continue as a going concern if the pro-forma transactions and assumptions do not occur as set out in Note 2 of Appendix
1 and therefore were the pro-forma transactions and assumptions not to occur, Mobilarm may be unable to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business and at the amounts stated in the Financial Information.

7. Subsequent Events

Apart from the matters dealt with in this Report, including transactions and events listed in Note 2 of Appendix 1 to this
Report, and having regard to the scope of our Report, to the best of our knowledge and belief, there have been no other
material items, transactions, or events outside the normal course of business, subsequent to 31 December 2017, that
have come to our attention during the course of our engagement that would require comment on, or adjustment to, the
information referred to in our Report, or that would cause such information to be misleading or deceptive.

8. Declaration
Greenwich & Co are responsible for this Report.

The Historical Financial Information presented in Appendix 1 has been prepared by the directors of Mobilarm and is their
responsibility. The Pro-Forma Financial Information has been prepared by the directors of Mobilarm and is their

responsibility. This report is strictly limited to the matters contained herein and is not to be read as extending by
implication or otherwise to any other matter.

Greenwich & Co do not have any interest that could reasonably be regarded as being capable of affecting its ability to
give an unbiased conclusion in relation to this matter. Greenwich & Co is not the auditor of Mobilarm, the review of the
financial statements for the 6 months ended 31 December 2017 was carried out by Walker Wayland Audit (WA) Pty Ltd



. Except for fees relating to this Report and, from fees relating to the preparation of an Independent Experts Report,
which are based on normal commercial terms, Greenwich & Co does not have any interest in Mobilarm or in the outcome
of the Offer. Greenwich & Co have not made, and will not make, any recommendation through the issue of this Report
to potential investors of Mobilarm as to the merit of the investment.

Greenwich & Co were not involved in the preparation of any part of the Prospectus, and accordingly, make no
representations or warrantees as to the completeness and accuracy of any information contained in any other part of
the Prospectus.

Consent for the inclusion of this Report in the Prospectus in the form and context in which it appears has been given. At
the date of this Report, this consent has not been withdrawn.

Yours faithfully

f-f:_“_)kr;k«&b% HO\\@«W%

Nicholas Hollens

Director

Greenwich & Co Audit Pty Ltd
Level 2, 35 Outram Street
West Perth WA 6005

Date: 25 September 2018



Appendix 1

1. Historical and Pro-Forma Financial Information

1a. Mobilarm Historical and Pro-Forma Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2017

Current Assets Note

Cash and cash equivalents 4
Trade & other receivables

Inventories

Other current assets

Deferred consideration

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Plant and equipment 5
Intangible assets and goodwill
Investment in other businesses
Deferred consideration

Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Provisions

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Provisions

Interest bearing loans

Total Non Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Contributed equity 6
Accumulated losses
Reserves 7

Total Equity

Mobilarm Pro-Forma Pro-Forma Pro-Forma — Pro-Forma —
As at adjustments adjustments Min Max
31 December (Sale of MRT) - Acquisition  Subscription Subscription
2017 asat31 of Jaxsta Pty asat31 asat31
(reviewed) December Ltd 31 December December
2017 December 2017 2017
2017
$ $
381,532 643,394 4,453,663 5,478,589 7,358,589
779,313 (779,313) 18,007 18,007 18,007
1,897,252 (1,897,252) - - -
1,539,250 (82,201) (711,282) 745,767 745,767
- 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 1,000,000
4,597,347 (1,115,372) 3,760,388 7,242,363 9,122,363
776,643 (776,643) 478,401 478,401 478,401
2,334,958 (2,363,671) 25,836,877 25,808,164 25,808,164
1,500,000 - (1,500,000) - -
- 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 4,000,000
4,611,601 859,686 24,815,278 30,286,565 30,286,565
9,208,948 (255,686) 28,575,666 37,528,928 39,408,928
1,282,062 (987,406) 586,869 881,525 881,525
3,907,703 - (2,447,945) 1,459,758 1,459,758
93,128 (59,661) 100,000 133,467 133,467
5,282,893 (1,047,067) (1,761,076) 2,474,750 2,474,750
53,212 (18,380) - 34,832 34,832
- 778 280,680 281,458 281,458
53,212 (17,602) 280,680 316,290 316,290
5,336,105 (1,064,669) (1,480,396) 2,791,040 2,791,040
3,872,843 808,983 30,056,062 34,737,888 36,617,888
30,601,809 4,542,294 37,309,843 72,453,946 74,333,946
(28,385,380) (4,219,636) (7,253,781) (39,858,797 (39,858,797)
1,656,414 486,325 - 2,142,739 2,142,739
3,872,843 808,983 30,056,062 34,737,888 36,617,888

The above statement should be read in accordance with the accompanying notes.



The above statement should be read in accordance with the accompanying notes.

Mobilarm Historical Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the Period Ended 31 December 2017

MBEO Sale of MRT Acquisition of Performa IXTMin  Performa JXT Max
Jaxsta

Sale of goods 1,378,732 1,378,732 - - -
Rentals recognised as revenue 663,897 663,897 - - -
Total Revenue 2,042,629 2,042,629 - - .
Costs of sales {430,549} {430,549) - R -
Depreciation of units undar rental N 117,995 {117,995} - - . -
Interest income 535 {535) - - -
Grant income - - 583,652 583,652 583,652
Operating Expenses 2,135,309 {2,139,309) 1,494,147 1,494,147 1,494,147
Profit/{Loss) before incame tax 644,689 (644,6839) 210,485 910,495 910,495
Income tax expenses/{benefit) - - - - -
Loss from operations after income tax 644,689 (644,689} 910,495 910,495 910,495
Other comprehensive income - - - - B
Foreign currency translation reserve movement 49,67% 49,679 - - -

Total comprehensive loss Tor the period 595,010 595,010 910,495 910,495 910,495
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Pro-Forma Transactions and Assumptions

Pro-forma assumptions and transactions:

a)

b)

¢

As outlined in sections 9.4 of the Prospectus, entering into a binding agreement to dispose of the company’s main
subsidiary MRT for total consideration of 56,000,000. The consideratlon is payable as follows: $1,000,000 on
completion of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, $1,000,000 on the first anniversary of the date of completion and
the remabning 54,000,000 on the 2™ anniversary of completion.

As outlined in sections 4.1 and 4.16 of the Prospectus, an offer of 106,991,795, 2,000,000 and 408,000 fulty paid
Shares at an issue price of $0.20 per Share to acquire the remaining 80% of the issued share capital of Jaxsta
Holdings Pty Ltd. The consideration of 106,991,795 was within the maximum number of share of 115,420,126
agreed to within the parties.

The issue of a minimum of 25,000,000 and & maximum of up to 35,000,000 placement shares at an issue price of
$0.20 per share to raise a minimum of $5,000,000 and a maximum of $7,000,000.



3. Summeary of Significant Accounting Pelicles

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial Information are summarised betow.

Basis of Reporting

The Finmancial (nformation has been prepared in accordance with the Corperations Act 2001 and recognition and
measurement requirements (but not all disclosure requirements) of Australian Accounting Standards and Australian
Accounting Interpretations adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board. The Financial Information covers
Mobilarm Limited, a public company, incorparated and domiciled in Australia (“Macbilarm”}. The Financial Information is
presented in Australian doilars. The Financial Information has been prepared on an accrual basis and is based on historical
costs. Cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

(Going concern

The Financial Infarmation has been prepared on the going concern basis, Mobilarm incurred a loss for the 6 months ended 31
December 2017 of $644,680 {12 months to 30 June 2017 $930,057). Significant transactions that have occurred since 31
December 2017 are outlined at Note 2. The going concern basis is dependent upon the pro-forma transactions and
assumptions outiined above in Note 2 occurring or Mobilarm raising additional capital to pay its debts as and when they fall
due. In the Directors’ opinion these events will be achieved and therefore Mobilarm will be able to continue as a going
concern and therefore realise its assets and extinguish its (iabilities in the nermal course of business at the amounts stated in

the Financial Information.

Shouid Mobilarm be unable to continue as a going concern, it may be required to realise its assets and extinguish its liabilities
other than in the ordinary course of business, and at amounts that differ from those in the Financial information. The
Financial Information does not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset
amounts or to the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessarily incurred should Mobilarm not continue as

a going concern.

Significant accounting policies

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting Financial Information satisfies the
concepts of relevance and reliability, and that the substance of underlying transactions and other events is reported. The
following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of the Financial Information:

Accounting Policies

{a) Incorne tax
The income tax expense for the year comprises current income tax expense and deferred tax expense.

Deferred income tax expense reflects movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability balances during the
year as well as unused tax losses, if any in fact are brought to account,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ascertained based on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Financial Information. Deferred tax assets also result where
amounts have been fully expensed but future tax deductions are available. No deferred income tax will be recognised
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability, excluding a business combination, where there is no effect on

accounting or taxable profit or less.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date. Their
measurement also reflects the way management expects to recover or settie the carrying amount of the related asset
or liability.

Deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences and unused tax losses are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the benefits of the deferred tax asset can be utilised.



(b)

{c

{d)

{e)

Current tax assets and liabilitles are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists and it is intended that net
settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and Mability will accur. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists, the deferred tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities where it is intended that net settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and
liability will oceur in future periods in which significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be

recovered or settled.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Impairment of Assets

Impairment testing is performed annually far goodwill, Intangfble assets with indefinite lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use. For other assets, at each reporting date, Mobilarm review the carrying values of their tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any Indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an
indication exists, the recoverabfe amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use, is compared to the asset’s carrying value. Any excess of the asset's carrying value over its recoverable
amount is expensed to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive income.

Plant and Egquipment
Each class of plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and
impairment fosses.

The carrying amounts of plant and equipment are reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in excess of the
recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows
that will be received from the asset’s employment and subseguent disposal. The expected net cash flows have been
discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts.

Financial Instruments

Recognition and Initial Measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when Mobilarm becomes party to the contractual provisions to
the instrument.

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where the instrument is classified
at fair value through profit and loss, in which case transaction costs are expensed to profit and loss immediately.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement

Finance instruments are subsequently measured at either of fair value, amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, or cost. Fair value represents the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties. Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine fair value. In
other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted.

Amortised cost is calculated as:
the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition;

less principal repayments;

plus or minus the cumuilative amortisation of the difference, if any, between the amount Initially
recognised and the maturity amount calculated using the effective interest method, and

less any reduction for impairment.

The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant period and is
equivalent to the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts {including fees, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life (or when this cannot be reliably predicted, the
contractual term) of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
Revisions to expected future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying value with a conseguential
recognition of an income or expense in profit and loss.



{f

(e}
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Financial liabilities

Non-derivative financial liabilities {excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when Mcbilarm have a legal or constructive obligation, as a resuft of past events, for which it
is probable that an cutflow of economic benefits will result, and that outflow can be reliably measured.

Contributed Equity

Ordinary share capital is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received by Mobilarm. Any transaction costs
arising on the issue of ordinary shares are recognised directly in equity as a reduction of the share proceeds received.

Share based payments

The fair value of options granted is recognised as an expense with a correspanding increase in aquity, unless the options
are costs of capital in which case the options granted are recognised in equity only. The fair value of shares or
performance rights is ascertained as the market bld price. The fair value of the options granted is measured using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The number of shares and options expected to vest is reviewed and adjusted at each reporting date (except where the
change in expectation relates to market conditions} such that the amount recognised for services received as
consideration for the equity instruments granted shall be based on the number of equity instruments that eventually

vest,

Accounting estimates and judgements

Impairment
Mobilarm assess whether there are indications of impairment at each reporting date. Where an impairment indicator

exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts
incorporate a number of estimates.

Share based payments
Share based payments in the form of options are valued using pricing models. Models use assumptions and estimates as

inputs.



4. Cash and cash equivalents

Note Min Max
subscription subscription
$ $

Balance of cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2017 381,532 381,532
Add Subsequent events:

- Sale of MRT 2.a) 1,000,000 1,000,000

- MRT cash at 31 December 2017 (356,606) (356,606)

- Jaxsta cash at 31 December 2017 3,663 3,663

- Jaxsta Pre IPO raise 3,466,015 3,466,015

- Jaxsta Pre IPO expenditure (3,466,015) (3,466,015)
Add Pro-Forma adjustments:

- Offer 2.c) 5,000,000 7,000,000

- Costs of the offer (550,000) (670,000)
Pro-Forma balance of cash and cash equivalents 5,478,589 7,358,589

The funds from the Jaxsta Pre IPO raise are not included in the Use of Funds in Section 3.6 of the Prospectus as they have
been spent in the interim period as part of normal operations and the costs of the merger into Mobilarm Limited.

5. Intangible Assets and Goodwiill
Note S
Balance of Intangible assets and Goodwill at 31 December 2017 2,334,958
Adjust Subsequent events:
- Disposal of MRT Goodwill 2.3) (2,363,671)
- Jaxsta Intangible at 31 December 2017 4,235,515
Add Pro-Forma adjustment:
- Acquisition of Jaxsta * 19,351,362
- Elimination of investment in Jaxsta 2,250,000
Pro-Forma balance of Intangible Assets and Goodwill 25,808,164
* Purchase price of Jaxsta 21,398,359
Wet assets at date of acquisition (2,046,997)

19,351,362




5.a) Jaxsta Enterprises — Goodwill

Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd incorporated on 27 May 2016. However, the Jaxsta business had been operating for a longer period
before that — since 17 April 2015 — through Jaxsta Enterprises Pty Ltd.

The results of Jaxsta Enterprises Pty Ltd for the period 17 April 2015 — 26 May 2016 have been incorporated in the
financial statements of Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd for the period ended 30 June 2016 through the calculation of Goodwill on
acquisition of Jaxsta Enterprises Pty Ltd by Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd.

The calculation of goodwill on acquisition is as follows:

27 May 2016

($)

Consideration (in shares) 3,000,000
Less equity of Jaxsta Enterprises Pty Ltd:

Share Capital (10)

Accumulated Losses 1,025,924

Goodwill 4,025,914

On consolidation with Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd, these historical results of Jaxsta Enterprises Pty Ltd are incorporated in this
Goodwill asset, representing the development of the business’ assets up to that date.

6. Contributed equity
Note Min Min Max Max
Subscription Subscription Subscription Subscription
Number of S Number of S
Shares Shares
Balance of contributed equity at 31 December 2017 493,119,559 30,601,809 493,119,559 30,601,809
Add Subsequent event:
- Conversion of Performance Share Rights 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 -
- Share consolidation 1 for 10 (448,307,453) - (448,307,453 -
49,812,106 30,601,809 49,812,106 30,601,809
- Performance shares 550,000 - 550,000 -
- Conversion of loan 32,000,000 - 32,000,000 -
Shares on issue at pre-acquisition 82,362,106 30,601,809 82,362,106 30,601,809
Shares issued re acquisition of Jaxsta Limited 109,399,795 32,859,844 109,399,795 32,859,844
Disposal of Marine Rescue Technologies Ltd - 4,542,293 - 4,542,293
Add Pro-Forma adjustments:
- Offer 2.c) 25,000,000 5,000,000 35,000,000 7,000,000
- Costs of the offer - (550,000) - (670,000)

Pro-Forma balance of contributed equity at 31
December 2017 *** 216,761,901 72,453,946 226,761,901 74,333,946




7. Reserves

Note S
Balance of reserves at 31 December 2017 1,656,414
Add Subsequent events:
- Sale of Mobilarm 486,325
Pro-Forma balance of reserves 2,142,739

8. Commitments

As outlined in Sections 9.2 of the Prospectus, Jaxsta has entered into a Metadata and Artwork Agreement with Sony Music
Entertainment under which Jaxsta pays a fixed fee to Sony Music Entertainment.

9. Post balance date events

No matters or circumstances have arisen since 31 December 2017 which significantly affect the state of affairs of Mobilarm,
other than the matters outlined above and those disclosed in the Prospectus.

10. Related party transactions

Related parties and related party transactions are outlined in Section 4.17 and 5.3 of the Prospectus.



Appendix 2

1. Historical Financial Information

1a. Jaxsta Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the period 27 May 2016 to 30
June 2016 and the year ended 30 June 2017 and for the six months ending 31 December 2017.

Audited Audited Audited
Half Year Full Year From 27
Ended 31 Ended 30 May 2016 to
December June 2017 30 June 2016
2017
Other income 583,652 427,589 638
Employee costs 849,650 1,372,723 75,875
Depreciation and amortisation 43,966 87,932 49,921
Other expenses 598,263 1,634,027 23,820
Finance costs 2,268 - -
Loss before income tax 910,495 2,667,093 148,978
Income tax expense - - -
Loss from continuing operations 910,495 2667,093 148,978
Other comprehensive income, net of
income tax
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the
period 910,495 2,667,093 148,978

The Jaxsta business was operating from 17 April 2015, through Jaxsta Enterprises Pty Ltd. The results of this business,
up till its date of acquisition by Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd, are incorporated into the financial statements of Jaxsta Holdings
Pty Ltd for the period to 30 June 2016, via the calculation of the goodwill asset, which includes a component
determined by the historical results of Jaxsta Enterprises Pty Ltd.

Please see Note 5.a) of Appendix 1 for further information on this calculation.



Statement of Financial Position

Jaxsta Statement of Financial Position at 30 June 2016, 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2017.

Audited Audited Audited

As at 31 As at 30 As at

December June 2017 30 June 2016

2017

$ $ $

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3,663 8,998 144,048
Trade and other receivables 18,007 21,794 15,142
Other assets 38,718 32,018 10,866
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 60,388 62,810 170,056
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 478,401 501,101 231,754
Intangible assets 4,235,515 4,248,839 4,107,242
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 4,713,916 4,749,940 4,338,996
TOTAL ASSETS 4,774,304 4,812,750 4,509,052
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 586,869 564,466 88,038
Current tax liabilities 1,459,758 69,909 -
Advances received 100,000 - -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,146,627 634,375 88,038
Borrowings 580,680 1,494,845 1,069,990
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 580,680 1,494,845 1,069,990
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,727,307 2,129,220 1,158,028
NET ASSETS 2,046,997 2,683,530 3,351,024
EQUITY
Issue capital 5,773,563 5,499,602 3,500,002
Retained earnings -3,726,566 -2,816,072 -148,978

TOTAL EQUITY 2,046,997 2,683,530 3,351,024




Statement of Cash Flows
Jaxsta Statement of Cash Flows for the period 27 May 2016 to 30 June 2016 and for the year ended 30

June 2017 and for the six months ending 31 December 2017.

Audited Audited Audited
half year year ended period 27
ended 30 June May 2016 to
December 30 June 2016
2017 2017
$ $ $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Receipt from grants 598,716 427,589 638
Payments to suppliers and employees -1,489,604 -2,488,199 -334,855
Interest received 30 - -
Finance costs paid -2,268 - -
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities -893,126 -2,060,610 -334,217
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and
equipment -7,800 -498,895 -21,737
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities -7,800 -498,895 -21,737
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares 250,000 1,999,600 500,000
Proceeds from borrowings 545,593 424,855 -
Funds received in advance 100,000 - -
Net cash provided by (used
in)financing activities 895,593 2,424,455 500,000
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents held -5,333 -135,050 144,046
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the period 8,996 144,046 -

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the period 3,663 8,996 144,046




Appendix 3

Full financial statements for Jaxsta for the periods ended 30 June 2016, 30 June 2017 and 31
December 2017, are attached herewith.
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Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Directors' Report
For the Period Ended 30 June 2016

The directors present heir report on Jaxsia Holdings Pty Ltd (the "Company"}, together with the financial statements of
("the Group®), being the Company and its controlled entity, for the financial period ended 30 June 2016.

i. General information

Information on directors
The names of each person who has been a director during the period and to the date of this report are:

Jacqueline Samantha Louez Schoorl appointed 27 May 2016
Louis Schoorl appointed 27 May 2016
Directors have been in office since the start of the financial period to the date of this report unless otherwise staled,

Principal activities -
The principal activities of the Group during the financial period were lo operate music database platforms,
No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the period.

2. Operating results and review of operations for the year

Operating results
The consolidated loss of the Group amounted to § {148,979),

3. Other items

Significant changes in state of affairs
There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of entities in the Group during the period.

Events after the reporting date

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial period which significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the Group, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Group in future
financial years.

Future developments and results

Likely developments in the operations of the Graup and the expecled resulls of those operations in future financial years
have not been included in this report as the inclusion of such information is likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the
Group.

Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors

No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the financial period, for any person
who is or has been an officer or auditor of Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd.

Auditor's independence declaration

The lead auditor's independence declaration in accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, for the period
ended 30 June 2016 has been received and can be found on page 2 of the financial report.

Signed in accorgédnce with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

Jacqueline Samantha Louez Schoorl

Dated this ............. 7t .....uer., day of ._.......December.................... 2017

1
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Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the
Corporations Act 2001 to the Directors of
Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd and Controlled Entities

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the period ended 30 June 2016, there have been:

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Carporations Act 2001 in relation to
the audit; and ¢

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

pp et 1y 4t

PA AUDIT PTY LTD

KATHAL SPENCE

DIRECTOR

Fremantle, WA 6160
7 December 2017
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Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd

ACN : 612 656 372

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive

For the Period Ended 30 June 2016

Other income

Employee costs

Other expenses

Depreciation and Amortisation

Loss before income tax
Income tax expense

Loss from continuing operations

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the period

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

iIncome

3

2016
$
638
(75,875)
(23,820)
(49,921)

(148,978)

(148,978)

(148,978)



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables
Other assels

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
intangible assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

Borrowings

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Issued capital
Retained Earning

TOTAL EQUITY

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

As At 30 June 2016

4

Note

(=]

10

i

2016

144,048
15,142
10,866

170,056

231,754
4,107,242
4,338,996
4,509,052

88,038

88,038
1,069,990
1,069,990

1,158,028

3,351,024

3,500,002
{148,978)

3351024



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 12 656 372

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Period Ended 30 June 2018

2016
Ovdinary Retained -
Bhares " Earnings Total

- Note $ § $
Balance at 27 May 2016 - - -
Shares issued during the yaar " 3,500,002 - 3,500,002
Loss attributable to members of the parent entity - (148,978) {148,978)
Balance at 30 June 2016 _ 3,500,002 (148,978)  3.381 024

The accompanylng notes form part of these financlal statemants,
5



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows_
For the Period Ended 30 June 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employaes
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Net cash provided by/{used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issue of shares

Net cash provided by/{used in) financing aclivities

Nel increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
6

Note

16

2016

638
(334,863)

(334225)

(21,737)
(21,737)

500,010

500,010

144048

144,048



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2016

The financial report covers Jaxsta Holdings Pty Lid and its controlied entities ('the Group'). Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd is a for-
profit proprietary Company, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

Each of the entities within the Group prepare their financial stalements based on the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (functional currency). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Australian dollars which is the parent entity's functional and presentation currency.

The financial report was authorised for issue on 07 December 2017 by the Board of Directors.

1

Basis of Preparation

In the Directors opinion, the Company is not a reporting enlity since there are unlikely to exist users of the financial
statements who are not able to command the preparation of reports tailored so as to satisfy specifically all of their

information needs. This special purpose financial report has been prepared to meet the reporting requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001,

The financial statements have been prepared in accardance with the recognition and measurement requirements of
the Auslralian Accounting Standards and Accounting Interpretations, and the disclasure requirements of AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements, AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows, AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes
fn Accounting Estimates and Errors and AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

(b)

Basis for consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial position and performance of controlled entities from
the date on which control is obtained until the date that control is lost.

Intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cashflows relating to transactions between entities
in the consolidated entity have been eliminated in full for the purpose of these financial statements.

Appropriate adjustments have been made to a controlled entity's financial position, performance and cash flows
where the accounting policies used by that entity were different from those adopted by the consolidated entity.
All controlled entities have a June financial year end,

Details of controlled entiy is contained in Note 12 to the financial statements.
Subsidiary

Subsidiary is an entity (including structured entities) over which the parent has cantral. Control is established
when the parent is exposed to, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity.

Income Tax

The tax expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
comprises of current income tax expense plus deferred tax expense.

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (loss) for the
period and is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities, using
the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Current tax liabilities (assets) are measured at the amounts expected lo be paid to (recovered from) the
relevant taxation authority.

f



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2016

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(b)

(c)

(d)

Income Tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences which are determined by comparing the carrying amounts of
tax bases of assels and liabilities to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax is not provided for the following:

2 The initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the
time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

. Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

. Temporary differences related to investment in subsidiaries, associates and jointly contralled entities to
the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the assel is realised or the liability is seitled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
losses can be utilised.

Current and deferred tax is recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period
except where the tax arises from a transaction which is recognised in other comprehensive income or equity, in
which case the tax is recognised in other comprahensive income or equity respectively.

Leases

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all of the risks and benefits remain with the lessor,
are charged as expenses on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term.

Lease incentives under operaling leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over
the life of the lease term.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group and specific criteria relating to the type of revenue
as noled below, has been salisfied.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is presented net of
returns, discounts and rebates.

Other income

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Graoup is entitled to it,



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2016

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

()

")

(9)

(h)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cosls that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construclion or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset,

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised nel of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST.

Cash flows in the consolidated statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component
of cash flows arising from invasting and financing activities which is recoverable from. or payable to, the
taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows.

Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment Is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are measured using the cost model.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets useful life to the Group,
commencing when the asset is ready for use.

Leased assets and leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the
lease or their estimated useful life,

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised initially using trade date accounting, i.e. on the date that the Group
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred),

Financial Assets
Financial assets are divided into the following categories which are described in detail below:

. loans and receivables;



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2016

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(h)  Financial instruments

. financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
. available-for-sale financial assets: and
. held-to-maturity investments,

Financial assets are assigned to the different categories on initial recognition, depending on the characteristics
of the instrument and its purpose. A financial instrument's category is relevant fo the way it is measured and
whether any resulting income and expenses are recognised in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income.

Allincome and expenses relating to financial assets are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in the ‘finance income' or ‘finance costs’ line item respectively.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments thal are not
quoted in an active markel. They arise principally through the provision of goods and services ta customers but
also incorporate other types of contractual monetary assets.

After initial recognition these are measured at amortised cost using the effective inlerest method, less provision
for impairment. Any change in their value is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group's trade and other receivables fall into this category of financial instruments.

In some circumstances, the Group renegotiates repayment terms with customers which may lead to changes in
the liming of the payments, the Group does not necessarily consider the balance to be impaired, however
assessment is made on a case-by-case basis.

Financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets:

. acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future
. designated by the entity to be carried at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition or
. which are derivatives not qualifying for hedge accounting.

The Group has some derivatives which are designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Assets included within this category are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in finance income or expenses in profil or loss.

Any gain or loss arising from derivative financial instruments is based on changes in fair value, which is
determined by direct reference to active markel transactions or using a valuation technique where no active
markel exists.



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2016

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(h)

Financial instruments
Held-to-maturity investments

Held-ta-malurity investments are non-derivalive financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity. Investments are classified as held-to-maturity if it is the intention of the Group's management to hold
them until maturity.

Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
with revenue recognised on an effective yield basis. In addition, if there is objective evidence that the
investment has been impaired, the financial assel is measured at the present value of estimated cash flows.
Any changes to the carrying amount of the investment are recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assels

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that do not qualify for inclusion in any of
the other calegories of financial assets or which have been designated in this category. The Group's available-
for-sale financial assets comprise listed securities.

All available-for-sale financial assels are measured at fair value, with subsequent changes in value recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Gains and losses arising from financial instruments classified as available-for-sale are only recognised in profit
or loss when they are sold or when the investment is impaired.

In the case of impairment or sale, any gain or loss previously recognised in equity is transferred to the profit or
loss.

Losses recognised in the prior period consclidated consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income resulting from the impairment of debt securities are reversad through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, if the subsequent increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ or other financial
liabilities depending on the purpose for which the liability was acquired. Although the Group uses derivative
financial instruments in economic hedges of currency and interest rate risk, it does not hedge account for these
transactions.

The Group's financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables (including finance lease liabilities),
which are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Impairment of financial assels

At the end of the reporting period the Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired,

Financial assets at amortised cos!

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has been
"
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Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2016

Summary of Significant Accounting Paolicies

(h)

(i)

Financial instruments '

incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present vaiue of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial assets original effective interest
rale.

Impairment on loans and receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance accounts, all other impairment
losses on financial assets at amortised cost are laken direclly to the asset,

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses in profit or lass.
Available-for-sale financial assels

A significant or prolonged decline in value of an available-for-sale asset below its cost is objective evidence of
impairment, in this case, the cumulative loss that has been recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. Any subsequent increase in the value
of the asset is taken direclly to other comprehensive income.

Intangibles
Goodwill

Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the sum of;

i) the consideration transferred:
il) any non-controlling interest; and
iii) the acquisition date fair value of any previously held equity interest;

over the acquisition date fair value of net identifiable assets acquired in a business combination.

The value of goodwill recognised on acquisition of each subsidiary in which the Group holds less than a 100%
interest will depend on the method adopted in measuring the aforementioned non-controlling interest. The
Group can elect to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value (‘full goodwill
method') or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the subsidiary's identifiable net assets
(‘proportionate interest method'). The Group determines which method to adopt for each acquisition.

Under the 'full goodwill method", the fair values of the non-controlling interests are determined using valuation
techniques which make the maximum use of market information where available.

Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment annually and is allocated to the Group's cash generaling
units or groups of cash generating units, which represent the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored but
where such level is not larger than an operating segment. Gains and losses on the dispoesal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill related to the entity sold.

Changes in the ownership interests in a subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions and do not affect
the carrying values of goodwill.

12



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2016

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

()

(k)

0

{m)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period the Group determines whether there is an evidence of an impairment
indicator for non-financial assets.

Where an indicator exists and regardless for goodwill, indefinile life intangible assels and intangible assets not
yet available for use, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.

Where assets do not operate independently of other assets, the recoverable amount of the relevant cash-
generaling unit (CGU) is estimatad.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value
in use. Value in use is the present value of the fulure cash flows expecled lo be derived from an asset or cash-
generating unit.

Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss,

Reversal indicators are considered in subsequent periods for all assets which have suffered an impairment
loss, except for goodwill.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,

Bank overdrafts also form part of cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows
and are presented within current liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial position,

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares
and share oplions which vest immediately are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

New Accounting Standards and Interpretations

The AASB has issued new and amended Accounting Standards and Interpretfations that have mandatary
application dates for future reporting periods. The Group has decided not (o early adopt these Standards. The
following table summarises those future requirements, and their impact on the Group where the standard is
relevant:

Effective date

Standard Name for Group Requirements Impact

AASB 2016-1 Amendments to Annual This standard amends AASB 112 This Interpretation is
Auslralian Accounting reporting Income Taxes la clarify the not expected to
Standards — Recognition of periods requirements on recognition of significantly impact the
Deferred Tax Assets for beginning on  deferred tax assets for unrealised  Company's financial
Unrealised Losses [AASB 112]  or after 1 losses on debt instruments statements.

January 2017 measured at fair value,

13
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ACN : 612656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2016

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(m) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations

Effective date

Standard Name for Group

AASB 15 Revenue from Annual

contracts with customers reporting
periods

AASB 2014-5 Amendments to  beginning on

Australian Accounting or after 1

Standards arising from AASE January 2018

15

AASB 2015-8 Amendments to

Australian Accounting

Standards — Effective date of

AASB 15 AASB 2016-3

Amendments to Australian

Accounting Standards —

Clarifications to AASB 15

AASB 16 Leases Annual
reporting
period
beginning on
or after 1
January 2019

Requirements

AASB 15 introduces a five slep
process for revenue recognition with
the core principle of the new
Standard being for entities lo
recognise revenue o depict the
transfer of goods or services lo
cuslomers in amounts that reflect the
consideration (that is, payment) to
which the entity expects o be
entitled in exchange for those goods
or services,

Accounling policy changes will arise
in timing of revenue recognition,
treatment of contracts costs and
contracts which contain a financing
element.

AASB 15 will also result in enhanced
disclosures about revenue, provide
guidance for transactions that were
not previously addressed
comprehensively (for example,
service revenue and contracl
modifications) and improve guidance
for multiple-element arrangements.

AASE 16 will cause the majority of
leases of an entity lo be brought
onto the statement of financial
position. There are limited
exceptions relating lo short-term
leases and low value assets which
may remain off-balance sheet.

The calculation of the lease liability
will take into account appropriate
discount rates, assumptions about
lease term and increases in lease
payments,

A corresponding right to use asset
will be recognised which will be
amortised over the term of the lease.

Rent expense will no longer be
shown, the profit and loss impact of
the leases will be through
amortisation and interest charges.

14

Impact

This Interpretation is
not expected to
significantly impact the
Company's financial
statements.

This Interpretation is
not expected to
significantly impact the
Company's financial
statements.



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2016

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(m)

New Accounting Standards and lnterprataﬂ ons
Effective date

Standard Name

AASB 9 Financial Instruments
AASB 2010-7 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 9
(December 2009) AASE 2012-
6 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards —
Mandatory Effective Date of
AASB 9 and Transitional
Disclosures

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards - Conceptual
Framework, Materiality and
Financial Instruments

AASB 2014-1 Amendments io
Australian Accounting
Standards

AASB 2014-7 Amendments lo
Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB O
AASB 2014-8 Amendments lo
Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 9

for Group

Annual
reporting
periods
beginning on
or after 1
January 2018

Impact
This Interpretation is

Requirements

Significant revisions to the
classificalion and measurement'of  nol expected to
financial assets, reducing the significantly impact the
‘number of categories and simplifying Company's financial
the measurement choices, including statements.

the removal of impairment testing of

assels measured at fair value. The

amortised cost model is available for

debt assets meeling bolh business

model and cash flow characteristics

tests. All investments in equity

instruments using IFRS 9 are to be

measured at fair value. :

Amends measurement rules for
financial liabilities that the entity
elects to measure at fair valus
through profit and loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to changes in
the entity's own credit risk are
presented in other comprehensive
income.

Chapter 6 Hedge Accounting
supersedes the general hedge
accounting requirements in IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement, which many
consider to be too rules-based and
arbitrary. Chapter 6 requirements
include a new approach to hedge
accounting that is intended fo more
closely align hedge accounting with
risk management activities
undertaken by entities when hedging
financial and non-financial risks.
Some of the key changes from IAS
39 are as follows:

*to allow hedge accounting of risk
companents of non-financial items
that are identifiable and measurable
(many of which were prohibited from
being designated as hedged items
under IAS 39);

~changes in the accounting for the
time value of options, the forward
element of a forward contract and
foreign-currency basis spreads
designated as hedging instruments:
and

15



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2016

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(m)  New Accounting Standards and Interpretations

Effective date
Standard Name for Group Requirements Impact
AASB 9 Financial Instruments
{continued.) ‘modification of the requirements for

effectiveness testing (including
removal of the 'bright- line'
effectiveness test that offset for
hedging must be in the range 80
125%]. ;
Revised disclosures about an
enlity's hedge accounting have alsa
been added to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures,

Impairment of assets is now based
on expected losses in IFRS 9 which
requires entities 1o measure:

sthe 12-month expected credit losses
(expected credit losses that resul
from those default events on the
financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting
date); or

“full lifetime expected credit losses
(expecled credit losses that result
from all possible defaull events over
the life of the financial instrument.

3 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The direr_:tars make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding
assumptions aboul current and future events affecting transactions and balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates.

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.
Key estimates - impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Grqup ‘assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions specific to the Group that
may be indicative of impairment triggers, Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are reassessed using value-in-use
calculations which incorporate various key assumptions.

Key estimates - fair value of financial instruments

The Group has certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value. Where fair value has not able to
be determined based on quoted price, a valuation model has been used. The inputs to these models are observable,
where possible, however these techniques involve significant estimates and therefore fair value of the instruments
could be affected by changes in these assumptions and inputs.

16



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2016

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments
Key estimates - receivables

The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to delermine whether there is any objeclive evidence thal any of
the receivables are impaired. An impairment provision s included for any receivable where the entire balance is not
considered colleclible. The impairment provision is based on the best information at the reporting date.

Revenue and Other Income

2016
$
Other Income
- other income 602
- interest income 36
638
Cash and Cash Equivalents
2016
$
Cash at bank and in hand 144,048
?44!048

Reconciliation of cash

Cash and Cash equivalents reported in the consolidated statement of cash flows are reconciled to the equivalent items
in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

2016
$
Cash and cash equivalents 144,048
Balance as per consolidated statement of cash flows 144,048
Trade and Other Receivahles
2016
$
CURRENT
Trade receivables 500
GST receivable 14,642

Total current trade and other receivables 15,142

The carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term
nature of the balances. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of
receivable in the financial statements.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2016

Property, plant and equipment
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office equipment
At cost

Computer equipment
At cost

Total computer equipment

Computer software
At cost

Accumulated depreciation
Total computer software

Leasehold Improvements
At cost

Total leasehold improvements

Total property, plant and equipment

intangible Assets

Goodwill
Al cost

Net carrying value

Patent and trade mark
At Cost

Net carrying value

Company formation cost
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net carrying value
Total Intangibles

Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

18

2016

30,546

83,044

93,044

116,705
(37,970)

78,735

29,429

29,420

—

2016

4,025,914

4,025914

33,522
33,522

59,757
(11,951)

47,806

4,107,242
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Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2016

Other Assets
2016
$
CURRENT
Prepaymenis 2,533
Other asset 8,333

10,866

Trade and Other Payahles‘

2016
: $
Current
Trade payables 12,789
Other payables 75,249

__ 88038

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days. The carrying
value of trade and other payables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term nalure
of the balances.

Issued Capital
2016

5
19,000,000 Ordinary shares 3,500,002

Total 3,500,002

(a)  Ordinary shares

2016

No.
At the beginning of the reporting period "
Shares issued during the year
Issued during the period - 27,000,000

Al the end of the reporting period 27,000,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the
Company. On a show of hands al meelings of the Company, each holder of ordinary shares has one vote in
person or by proxy, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

The Company does nol have authorised capital or par value in respect of its shares,

19
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Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 855 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 3¢ June 2018

Interasis in Subsidiarizs

(@  Composltion of the Group

Principal place of
business ! Country of Percontaga
Incarporation Qwined (%)*

2ma
Subsiciary: :
Jexsta Einlerprise Pty Ltd : Australia 100
* “The percentage of awnership interest hakt is aquivalent to the perceniage ubting rights for all subsidiaries,

Capltal and Leasing Commitments

(a) Operating Leases

2016
.
Minimum lease payments undar non-cancellable operating leases:
- net later than one year - 102,000
- betwesh one year and five years 110,000

__ 212000

Contingencles

In the opinion of the Direciors, the Company did not have any contingencies at 30 June 2016.

Events aftar the end of the Reporting Period
Company issued & 120,000 ordinary shares amounting to $2,098,600 subsaquent 1o 30 June 2016.

Except for the malters referred above, thers were no other matters or circumstances have arisan since the end of the
financial period which slgnificantly affected or may significantly affect the gperations ofthe Group, fhe results of thosa
operations or the state of affairs of the Group in future financlal years, :

20



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2016

16 Cash Flow Information

(@)  Reconciliation of result for the period to cashflows from operating activities

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Loss for the period
Cash flows excluded from profit attributable to operating activities
Non-cash flows in loss:
- depreciation and amortisation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
- (increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
- (increase)/decrease in other assets
- (increase)/decrease in property plant & euipment
- increase!(det:rease) in trade and other payables
Cashflows from operations

17 Registered office

The registered office of the company is:
Level 21 1 York Street
SYDNEY NSW 2000

The principal place of business is:
Suite 2 Level 1
113-115 Oxford Street
DARLINGHURST NSW 2010

21

2016

$
(148,978)

49,921

(15,142)
(10,866)
" (297,190)
88,038

(334,217)



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Directors' Declaration

The directors have determined that the Company is nol a reporting entity and that this special purpose financial report
should be prepared in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 2 to the financial statements.

The directors of the Company declare that:

1. Thg financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 3 lo 21, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001
and:

(a) comply with Accounting Standards as stated in Note 1; and

(b) give a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 30 June 2016 and of its performance for the
year ended on that date in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 2 1o the financial
statements.

2. In the directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debis as and
when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Dated this .................7.......... day of

........... December................... 2017

22
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Independent Audit Report to the members of

Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report of Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd (the
Company) and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June
2016, the consolidated statement of profil or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors' declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 30 June 2016 and of its financial performance for the
year ended; and

(i) gggtplying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1 and the Corporations Regulations
1.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auslralian Auditing Standards. Qur responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the
ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (ihe Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the directors
of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the lime of this auditor's report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial report has been
prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the directors’ financial reporting responsibilities under the Corporations Act 2001, As a
result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and
have determined that the basis of preparation described in Note 1 o the financial report is appropriate to meet the
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and is appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The directors’
responsibility also includes such intemal control as the directors determine necessary to enable the preparation of a financial
report thal gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due lo fraud or error.

In Pfepﬁrin_g the Iﬁnam:ial reporl, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going cancern basis of accounting unless
the direclors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic altemative but to do so.
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Independent Audit Report to the members of

Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and o issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected o influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report.

s ' S
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PA AUDIT PTY LTD

KATHAL SPENCE
DIRECTOR

Fremantle, WA 6160
7 December 2017
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Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Directors' Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017

The directors present their report on Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd (the "Company"), together with the financial statements of
("the Group"), being the Company and its controlled entily, for the financial period ended 30 June 2017,

1.  General information

Information on directors
The names of each person who has been a director during the period and to the date of this report are:

Jacqueline Samantha Louez Schoorl appointed 27 May 2016
Louis Schoorl appointed 27 May 2016
Directors have been in office since the start of the financial period to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Group during the financial period were to operate music database platforms.,
Na significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the period,

2. Operating results and review of operations for the year

Operating results
The consolidated loss of the Group amounted to § (2,667,094) (2016: $(146,428)).

3. Other items

Significant changes in state of affairs
There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of entifies in the Group during the period.

Events after the reporting date

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial period which significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the Group, the resulls of those operations or the state of affairs of the Group in future
financial years.

Future developments and results

Likely developments in the operations of the Group and the expected results of those operations in future financial years
have not been included in this report as the inclusion of such information is likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the
Group.

Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors

No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the financial period, for any person
who is or has been an officer or auditor of Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd.

Auditor's independence declaration

The lead auditor's independence declaralion in accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, for the period
ended 30 June 2017 has been received and can be found on page 2 of the financial report.

Jacqueline Samantha Louez Schoorl

Dated this .............7th................ day of .........December.................. 2017

1
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Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the
Corporations Act 2001 to the Directors of

Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd and Controlled Entities
| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the period ended 30 June 2017, there have been:

(i} no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as sel oul in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to
the audit; and

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.
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PA AUDIT PTY LTD
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KATHAL SPENCE
DIRECTOR

Fremantle, WA 6160
7 December 2017
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Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income
For the Year Ended 30 June 2017

2017 2016

$ $
Other income 427,589 638
Employee costs (1,372,723) (75,875)
Depreciation and Amortisation : (87,932) . (49.921)
Other expenses (1,634,027) (23,820)
Loss before income tax (2,667,093) (148,978)
Income tax expense u .
Loss from continuing operations {2,667,093) (148,978)

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Other comprehensive income - 2

Total comprehensive income for the period __(2,667,093) £14859?81

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements,
3



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables
Other assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Inlangible assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Current tax liabilities

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

Borrowings

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Issued capital
Retained Earning

TOTAL EQUITY

The accompanying notes form par of these financial statements,
4

As At 30 June 2017

Note

10

1"

2017 2016
$ $
8,998 144,048
21,794 15,142
32,018 10,866
62,810 170,056
501,101 231,754
4,248,839 4,107,242
4,749,940 4,338,996
4,812,750 4,509,052
564,466 88,038
69,909 .
634,375 88,038
1,494,845 1,069,990
1,494,845 1,069,990
2,129,220 1,158,028
2,683,530  3.351,024
5,499,602 3,500,002
(2,816,072) (148,978)
2,683,530 3351,024_




Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
.ACN : 612 668 372

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Period Endad 30 June 2017

2017
Ordinary Retained
Shares Earnings Total
Note [ 3 3
Batance at 1 July 2016 3,500,002 (148,978) 3,351,023
Shares issued during the year \ 11 1,599,600 . 1,999,600
Loas altributable to mambers of the parent entily . (2,667,093} (2,667,093)
Bakince at 30 June 2017 . 5499602  {2,816,072) 2,683,530
2016
Ordinary Retained
Shares Eamings Total
. Note $ $ $
Balance at 27 May 2016 - ' - -
Shares issuad during the period i 3,500,002 - 3,500,002
Loss attributable to members of the parent eniily - {148,978) (148,978}
Balance at 3¢ June 2016 : 3,800,002 (148,978) 3,351,024

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
5 .



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Period Ended 30 June 2017

2017 2016
Note , $ $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers 427,589 638
Payments to suppliers and employees (2,488,199) (334,855)
Net cash provided by/{used in) operating activities 16 (2,060,610) (334.217)
) il .
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (498,895) (21,737)
Net cash provided byl/(used in) investing activities  (498,895) (21,737)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issue of shares 1,999,600 500,002
Proceeds from borrowings 424,855 -
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 2,424,455 500,002
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
held (135,050) 144,048
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 144,048 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 5 8,098 144 048

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
8



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2017

The financial report covers Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd and its controlled entities ('the Group'). Jaxsta Holdings Pty Lid is a for-
profit proprietary Company, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

Each of the entities within the Group prepare their financial statements based on the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the enlity operates (functional currency). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Australian dollars which is the parent entity's functional and presentation currency.

The financial report was authorised for issue on 07 December 2017 by the Board of Directors.
1  Basis of Preparation

In the Direclors opinion, the Company is not a reporting entity since there are unlikely to exist users of the financial
slatements who are not able to command the preparation of reports tailored so as to satisfy specifically all of their
information needs. This special purpose financial report has been prepared to meet the reporting requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001,

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement requirements of
the Australian Accounting Standards and Accounting Interpretations, and the disclosure requirements of AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements, AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows, AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Eslimates and Errors and AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis for consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial position and performance of controlled entities from
the date on which control is obtained until the date that control is lost.

Intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cashflows relating to Iransactions between entities
in the consolidated entity have been eliminated in full for the purpose of these financial statements.

Appropriate adjustments have been made fo a controlled enlity's financial position, performance and cash flows
where the accounting policies used by that entity were different from those adopted by the consolidated entity.
All controlled entities have a June financial year end.

Details of controlied entiy is contained in Note 12 lo the financial statements.
Subsidiary

Subsidiary is an entity (including structured entities) over which the parent has control, Control is established
when the parent is exposed to, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity.

(b) Income Tax

The tax expense recognised in the consalidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
comprises of current income tax expense plus deferred tax expense.

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (loss) for the
period and is measured at the amount expected to be paid 1o (recovered from) the taxation authorities, using
the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Current tax liabilities (assets) are measured at the amounts expected lo be paid to (recovered from) the
relevant taxation authority,

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences which are determined by comparing the carrying amounts of
7 .



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2017

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Income Tax
tax bases of assets and liabilities to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax is not provided for the following:

. The initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the
time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor laxable profit (lax loss).

. Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

. Temporary differences related fo investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ly controlled entities lo
the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred lax assets and liabililies are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the assel is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deduclible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
losses can be utilised.

Current and deferred tax is recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period
except where the tax arises from a transaction which is recognised in other comprehensive income or equity, in
which case the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income or aquily respactively.

Leases

Lease payments for operating leases. where substantially all of the risks and benefits remain with the lessor,
are charged as expenses on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term.

Lease incenlives under oparating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over
the life of the lease term.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group and specific criteria relating to the type of revenue
as noted below, has been satisfied.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is presenled net of
returns, discounts and rebates.

Other income
Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Group is entitled to i,
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised as part of the cost of that assel.



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2017

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

{e)

(4]

(9)

()

Borrowing costs
All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred,
Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assels are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST.

Cash flows in the consolidated statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component
of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable {o, the
laxation authority is classified as operating cash flows.

Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, planl and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are measured using the cost model.
Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets useful life to the Group,
commencing when the asset is ready for use.

Leased assels and leasenold improvements are amortised over the shorter of gither the unexpired period of the
lease or their estimated useful life.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised initially using trade date accounting, i.e. on the date that the Group
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs ( except for
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred).

Financial Assets

Financial assets are divided into the following categories which are described in detail below:

B loans and receivables;
B financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
. available-for-sale financial assets: and



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2017
2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(h)  Financial instruments
. held-to-maturity investments.

Financial assets are assigned to the different categories on initial recognition, depending on the characterislics
of the instrument and its purpose_ A financial instrument's category is relevant to the way it is measured and
whether any resulting income and expenses are recognised in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income.

Allincome and expenses relating to financial assets are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in the ‘finance income' or finance costs' line item respectively.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active markel. They arise principally through the provision of goods and services to customers but
also incorporate other types of contractual monetary assels.

After initial recognition these are measured al amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. Any change in their value is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s trade and other receivables fall into this category of financial instruments.

In some circumslances, the Group renegotiates repayment terms with customers which may lead lo changes in
the timing of the payments, (he Group does not necessarily consider the balance to be impaired, however
assessment is made on a case-by-case basis.

Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assels:

. acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future
J designaled by the entity to be carried at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition or
. which are derivatives not qualifying for hedge accounting.

The Group has some derivalives which are designated as financial assets al fair value through profit or loss.

Assets included within this category are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in finance income or expenses in profit or loss.

Any gain or loss arising from derivative financial instruments is based on changes in fair value, which is
determined by direct reference to active market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active
markel exists.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed cr determinable payments and fixed
maturity. Investments are classified as held-to-maturity if it is the intention of the Group's management to hold
them until maturity.
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Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(h)

Financial instruments

Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective inlerest method,
with revenue recognised on an effective yield basis. In addition, if there is objeclive evidence that the
investment has been impaired, the financial asset is measured at the present value of estimated cash flows,
Any changes to the carrying amount of the investment are recognised in profil or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that do not qualify for inclusion in any of
the other categories of financial assels or which have been designated in this category, The Group's available-
for-sale financial assets comprise listed securities.

All available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value, with subsequent thanges in value recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Gains and losses arising from financial instruments classified as available-for-sale are only recognised in profit
or loss when they are sold or when the investment is impaired.

In the case of impairment or sale, any gain or loss previously recognised in equity is transferred lo the profit or
loss.

Losses recognised in the prior period consolidated consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income resulting from the impairment of debt securities are reversed through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, if the subsequent increase can be abjectively
relaled to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ or other financial
liabilities depending on the purpose for which the liability was acquired. Although the Group uses derivative
financial instruments in economic hedges of currency and interest rate risk, it does not hedge account for these
transactions.

The Group's financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables (including finance lease liabilities),
which are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of the reporting period the Group assesses whether there is any objeclive evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

Financial assets at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as (he difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of the estimaled future cash flows discounted at the financial assets original effective interest
rate.

Impairment on loans and receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance accounts, all ather impairment
losses on financial assets at amortised cost are taken directly to the asset.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expénses in profit or loss.
11



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2017

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(m)

(i)

)

Financial instruments
Available-for-sale financial assels

A significant or prolonged decline in value of an available-for-sale assel below iis cost is objective evidence of
impairment, in this case, the cumulative loss that has been recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. Any subsequent increase in the value
of the asset is taken directly to other comprehensive income.

Intangibles

Goodwill

Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the sum of:

i) the consideration transferred;

ii) any non-controlling interest; and

fif) the acquisition date fair value of any previously held equity interest;

over the acquisition date fair value of net identifiable assets acquired in a business combination.

Under the "full goodwill method', the fair values of the non-controlling interests are determined using valuation
techniques which make the maximum use of markel information where available.

Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment annually and is allocated to the Group's cash generating
units or groups of cash generating units. which represent the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored but
where such level is not larger than an operating segment, Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill related to the entity sold.

Changes in the ownership interests in a subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions and do not affect
Ihe carrying values of goodwill,

Impairment of non-financial assets

Atthe end of each reporting period the Group determines whether there is an evidence of an impairment
indicator for non-financial assets.

Where an indicator exists and regardless for goodwill, indefinite life intangible assets and inlangible assets not
yet available for use, the recoverable amount of the assel is estimated.

Where assets do not operate independently of other assets, the recoverable amount of the relevant cash-
generaling unit (CGU) is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value
in use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-
generating unit.

Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit ar
loss.

12
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Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

@

(k)

(U]

{m)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Reversal indicators are considered in subsequent periods for all assets which have suffered an impairment
loss, except for goodwill,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Bank overdrafts also form part of cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows
and are presented within current liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares
and share options which vest immedialely are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

New Accounting Standards and Interpretations

The AASB has issued new and amended Accounling Standards and Interpretations that have mandatory
application dates for future reporting periods. The Group has decided not to early adopt these Slandards. The
following table summarises those future requirements, and their impact on the Group where the standard is
relevant:

Effective date

Standard Name for Group Requirements Impact
AASB 2016-1 Amendmentsto  Annual This standard amends AASB 112 This Interpretation is
Australian Accounting reporiing Income Taxes to clarify the not expected to

_ Standards - Recognition of periods requirements on recognition of significantly impact the
Deferred Tax Assets for beginning on  deferred tax assels for unrealised Company's financial
Unrealised Losses [AASB 112]  or afier 1 losses on debt instruments statements,

January 2017 measured at fair value.

13



2

Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 812 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(m)

New Accounting Standards and Interpretations

Standard Name

AASB 15 Revenue from
conlracts with customers

AASB 2014-5 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB
15

AASB 2015-8 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards — Effective date of
AASB 15 AASB 2016-3
Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards -
Clarifications to AASB 15

AASB 16 Leases

Effective date
for Group

Annual
reporting
periods
beginning on
or after 1
January 2018

Annual
reporting
period
beginning on
or after 1
January 2019

Requirements
AASB 15 introduces a five step

procass for revenue recognition with

the core principle of the new
Standard being for entities to
recognise revenue lo depict the
transfer of goods or services lo

customers in amounts that reflect the
consideration (that is, payment) to

which the entity expects to be

entitled in exchange for those goods

or services.

Accounting policy changes will arise

in timing of revenue recognition,
treatment of contraclts costs and

contracts which contain a financing

element.

AASB 15 will also resull in enhanced
disclosures about revenue, provide
guidance for transactions that were

not previously addressed
comprehensively (for example,
service revenue and contract

modifications) and improve guidance
for multiple-element arrangements,

AASB 16 will cause the majority of

leases of an entity to be brought
onto the statement of financial
position. There are limited
exceptions relating o shori-term

leases and low value assets which

may remain off-balance sheet.

The calculation of the lease liability
will take into account appropriate
discount rates, assumptions about
lease term and increases in lease

paymenis.

A corresponding right to use asset

will be recognised which will be

amortised over the term of the lease.

Rent expense will no longer be

shown, the profit and loss impact of

the leases will be through

amortisation and interesl charges.

Impact

This Interpretation is
not expected to
significantly impact the
Company's financial
statements,

This Interpretation is
nol expecled to
significantly impact the
Company's financial
statements.



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2017

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(m)  New Accounting Standards and Interpretations

Effective date
Standard Name for Group

AASB 9 Financial Instruments Annual

Requirements Impact

Significant revisions to the This Interpretation is
AASB 2010-7 Amendments to  reporting classification and measurement of  not expected to
Australian Accounting periods financial assets, reducing the significantly impact the
Standards arising from AASB 9 beginning on  number of categories and simplifying Company's financial
(December 2009) AASB 2012- or after 1 the measurement choices, including statements,

6 Amendments to Australian January 2018  the removal of impairment testing of

Accounting Standards —
Mandatory Effective Date of
AASB 9 and Transitional
Disclosures

AASB 2013-9 Amendmenis to
Australian Accounting
Standards - Conceptual
Framework, Materiality and
Financial Instruments

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards

AASB 2014-7 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASRB g
AASB 2014-8 Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 9

assets measured at fair value. The
amortised cost model is available for
debt assets meeting both businass
model and cash flow characteristics
tests. All investments in equity
instruments using IFRS 9 are to be
measured at fair value.

Amends measurement rules for
financial liabilities that the entity
elects to measure al fair value
through profit and loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to changes in
the entity's own credit risk are
presented in other comprehensive
income.

Chapler 6 Hedge Accounting
supersedes the general hedge .
accounting requirements in IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement, which many
consider to be too rules-based and
arbitrary. Chapter 6 requirements
include a new approach to hedge
accounting that is intended to more
closely align hedge accounting with
risk management activities
undertaken by entities when hedging
financial and non-financial risks.
Some of the key changes from IAS
39 are as follows:

*to allow hedge accounting of risk
components of non-financial items
that are identifiable and measurable
(many of which were prohibited from
being designated as hedged items
under IAS 39);

changes in the accounting for the
time value of options, the forward
element of a forward contract and
foreign-currency basis spreads
designated as hedging instruments;
and

15
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ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2017

Summary of Significant Accou nting Policies

(m)  New Accounting Standards and Interpretations

Effective date
Standard Name for Group Requirements impact
AASB 9 Financial Instruments
(continued.) *modification of the requirements for

effectiveness testing (including
removal of the 'bright- line'
effectiveness test that offset for
hedging must be in the range 80-
125%).

Revised disclosures about an
entity's hedge accounting have also
been added to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures.

Impairment of assets is now based
on expecled losses in IFRS 9 which
requires entities to measure:

sthe 12-month expected credit losses
(expected credit losses thal result
from those default events on the
financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting
date), or

*full lifelime expected cradit losses
(expected credil losses that result
from all possible default events over
the life of the financial instrument.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The direclors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding
assumplions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates.

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.
Key estimates - impairment of praperty, plant and equipment

The Gropp assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions specific to the Group that
may be _tndlcahye ofimpairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are reassessed using value-in-use
calculations which incorporate various key assumplions.

Key estimates - fair value of financial instruments

The Group has certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured al fair value. Where fair value has not able to
be determined based on quoted price, a valuation model has been used. The inputs to these models are observable,
where possible, however these techniques involve significant estimales and therefore fair value of the instruments
could be affected by changes in these assumptions and inputs.

16
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2017
Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments
Key estimates - receivables

The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that any of
the receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for any receivable where the entire balance is not
considered collectible. The impairment provision is based on the best information at the reporting date.

Revenue and Other Income

2017 2016
$ $
Other Income
- other income 427 464 602
- interest income . 125 36
427,589 638
Cash and Cash Equivalents
2017 2016
$ $
Cash at bank and in hand 8,998 144,048
8,908 144,048

Reconciliation of cash

Cash and Cash equivalents reported in the consolidated statement of cash flows are reconciled lo the equivalent items
in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

2017 2016
$ $
Cash and cash equivalents 8,808 144,048
Balance as per consolidated statement of cash flows 8,998 144,048
Trade and Other Receivables
2017 2016
$ $
CURRENT
Trade receivables - 500
GST receivable 21,794 14,642
Total current trade and other receivables 21,794 15,142

The carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term
nature of the balances. The maximum exposure to credil risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of
receivable in the financial statements.

17



Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Period Ended 30 June 2017

Property, plant and equipment
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office equipment
Al cost
Accumulated depreciation

Total office equipment

Compuler equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

Total computer equipment

Computer software
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

Total computer software

Leasehold Improvements
At cost

Total leasehold improvemants

Total property, plant and equipment

Intangible Assets

Goodwill
Al cost

Net carrying value

Patent and trade mark
At Cost

Net carrying value

Company formalion cost
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net carrying value

Total Intangibles

18

2016

2017
$ $

36,370 30,546

(6,109) -

30,261 30,546
103,372 93,044
(31,015)

72,357 93,044
147,508 116,705
(62,130) (37,970)

85,378 78,735
313,105 29,429
313,105 29,429
501,101 231,754

2017 2016
$ $
4025914 4025014
4025914 4025914
128,285 33,522
128,285 33,522
133,239 59,757
(38,599) (11,951)
94,640 47,806
4,248,839 4,107,242
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 30 June 2017

Other Assets
2017 2016
§ $
CURRENT
Prepayments _ 5,618 2,533
Other asset 26,400 8,333
32,018 10,866
Trade and Other Payables
2017 2016
$ $
Current
Trade payables © 232,240 12,789
Other payables 332,227 75,249
564,467 88,038

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settied within 30 days. The carrying
value of trade and other payables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the shor-term nature

of the balances,

Issued Capital
2017 2016
$ $
27,000,000 (2016: 19,000,000) Ordinary shares 5,499,602 3,500,002
Total 5,499,602 3,500,002
(a)  Ordinary shares
2017 20186
No. No.
At the beginning of the reporting period -19,000,000
Shares issued during the year
Issued during the period 8,000,000 19,000,000
At the end of the reporting period 27,000,000 19,000,000

The holders of ordinary shares are enlitied to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the
Company. On a show of hands at meetings of the Company, each holder of ordinary shares has one vote in

person or by proxy, and upon a poll each share is entitled to cne vote.

The Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 20 June 2017

12  Interests in Subsidiaries

(8) Composition of the Group

Principal place of
business / Country of Percentage
Incorporation Owied (%)
2017
Subsidiary;
Jaxsta Enlerprise Ply Ltd - Australia

Percentage
Owned (%)*
26

100

“Tha percentage of ownership interest held is squivalent to the percentage voting rights for all subsidiarias,

13 Gapital and Leasing Commitments

()  Operating Leases

2017 2016
5. $
Minimum lease payments under non-cancaliable
uperaiing leases:
- hot later than one year " 110,000 102,000
- between one year and five years - 110,060
110,000 212,000

14 Contingencies

In the opinion of the Directars, the Compeny did not have any cortingencies at 30 June 2017,

16 Events after the end of the Rapowrting Period

Company issued 120,000 shares amounting to $100,00 on 18 Septembser 2017,

Except for the matters referred gibave, there were no other malters or circumstances have érisan since the end of the
linancial peviod which significantly affected or may significantly affect the aperations of the Group, the results of thase

operations or the state of affairs of the Group in future financial years.

. 20
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16 Cash Flow Information

(a) Reconciliation of result for the period to cashflows from operating activities

Reconciliation of net income to nel cash provided by operating aclivities:

2017 2016
§ 5
Loss for the period (2,667,094) (148,979)
Cash flows excluded from loss attributable to operating
activities
Non-cash flows in loss:
- amortisation 87,032 49,921
Changes in assets and liabilities:
- (increase)/decrease in trade and olher receivables (6,652) (15,142)
- (increase)/decrease in other assats (21,152) (10,866)
- (increase)/decrease in property plant and equipment - (297,189)
- increase/(decrease) in income in advance 69,909 -
- increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables - 476,447 88,038

Cashflows from operations (2,060,610) {334,217)

17 Registered office

The registered office of the company is:
Level 21 1 York Street
SYDNEY NSW 2000

The principal place of business is:
Suite 2 Level 1
113-115 Oxford Street
DARLINGHURST NSW 2010
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Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 812 656 372

Directors' Declaration

The directors have determined that the Company is not a reporting entity and that this special purpose financial report
should be prepared in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 2 to the financial statements.

The directors of the Company declare that:

1. The financial statements and notes, as set oul on pages 3 to 21, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001
and:

(a) comply with Accounting Standards as stated in Note 1: and

(b) give a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 30 June 2017 and of its performance for the
year ended on thal date in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 2 to the financial
statements. )

2. In the directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds lo believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors,

F

[

Director ...

\JT s Jacqueline Samantha Louez Schoorl

Dated this .........c..c....7o.oo.... day of ...........December................... 2017
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Independent Audit Report to the members of

Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report of Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd (the
Company) and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June
2017, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidaled statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial stalements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors' declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporalions Act 2001, including:

(1) giving a true and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 30 June 2017 and of its financial performance for the
year ended; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1 and the Corporations Reguiations
2001,

Basis for Opinion

We conducled our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the
ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) thal are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code,

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the directors
of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor's report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

We draw atiention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis of accaunting. The financial report has heen
prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the directors' financial reporting responsibilities under the Corporations Acl 2001. As a
result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose. Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and
have determined that the basis of preparation described in Note 1 to the financial report is appropriate to meet the
requirements of the Corporations Act 2007 and is appropriale to meet the needs of the members. The directors'
responsibility also includes such internal control as the directors determine necessary to enable the preparation of a financial
report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the direclors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the direclors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic altemative but to do so.
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Independent Audit Report to the members of

Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN : 612 656 372

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reascnable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report.

f 4 A i s
/A e/ P L

PA AUDIT PTY LTD

KATHAL SPENCE
DIRECTOR

Fremantle, WA 6160
7 December 2017
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DocusSign Envelope ID: 059D0645-638A-47BC-9AF1-0B9C9F3DEDES

Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd

ACN : 612 656 372

Directors' Report
For the Period Ended 31 December 2017

The directors present their report, together with the interim financial statements of the Group, being the Company and its
controlled entities, for the financial period ended 31 December 2017.

1. General information
Information on directors

The names of each person who has been a director during the period and to the date of this report are:
Jacqueline Samantha Louez Schoorl
Louis Schoorl

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group during the financial period were to operate music database platforms.
No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the period.

2.  Operating results and review of operations for the period

Operating results

The consolidated loss of the Group amounted to $ (910,495) (2016: $ 872,545).

Review of operations

During the period the Group remained focused to expand its ongoing business operations.

3. Otheritems

Significant changes in state of affairs

There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of entities in the Group during the period.
Events after the reporting date

Except for the matters referred in Note 17 to the financial statements, there are no other matters or circumstances have
arisen since the end of the financial period which significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Group,
the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Group in future financial years.

Future developments and results

Likely developments in the operations of the Group and the expected results of those operations in future financial years
have not been included in this report as the inclusion of such information is likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the
Group.

Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors

No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the financial period, for any person
who is or has been an officer or auditor of Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd.

1



DocuSign Envelope ID: 059D0645-638A-47BC-9AF1-0B9C9F3DEDES

Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd

ACN : 612 656 372
Directors' Report
For the Period Ended 31 December 2017

Auditor's independence declaration

The lead auditor's independence declaration in accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, for the period
ended 31 December 2017 has been received and can be found on page 3 of the interim financial report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:
DocuSigned by:

Jntopi Louery Selusert

B3335ESR88CAB44C.
D)1= Tox (o] SO PPPPRPPN
Jacqueline Samantha Louez Schoorl
Dated this .................. 12,0, day of ............ April...oe. 2018



91 High Street Fremantle WA 6160

PO Box 1220 Fremantle WA 6959
Telephone: +61 8 9430 6333
Facsimile: +61 8 9430 6222

Email: manager@dfkpa.com.au

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AND BUSINESS ADVISORS Web: www.dfkpa.com.au

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001

TO THE DIRECTORS OF JAXSTA HOLDINGS PTY LTD AND ITS CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the period ended 31
December 2017 there have been no contraventions of:

() the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001; and

(i)  any applicable code of professional conduct.

A9 et 1y 284

PA AUDIT PTY LTD

-

KATHAL SPENCE
DIRECTOR

Fremantle, WA
12 April 2018

i:\audit\audit clients folder\au545 jaxsta enterprise pty 1td\2015-2017\2017\2017 half year\reports & letters\au545 000 hy17 auditors independent decl.docx
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 059D0645-638A-47BC-9AF1-0B9C9F3DEDES

Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd

ACN : 612 656 372

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive

Income

For the Period Ended 31 December 2017

Other Income

Employee Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation
Other expenses

Finance costs

Loss before income tax
Income tax expense

Loss from continuing operations

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Other comprehensive Income

Total comprehensive income for the period

Note

Unaudited
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
$ $
583,652 427,341
(849,650) (558,972)
(43,966) -
(598,263) (740,914)
(2,268) -

(910,495) (872,545)

(910,495) (872,545)

(910,495) (872,545)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

4



DocuSign Envelope ID: 059D0645-638A-47BC-9AF1-0B9C9F3DEDES

Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd

ACN : 612 656 372

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As At 31 December 2017

31 December 30 June

2017 2017

Note $ $
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 3,663 8,998
Trade and other receivables 6 18,007 21,794
Other assets 7 38,718 32,018
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 60,388 62,810
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 8 478,401 501,101
Intangible assets 9 4,235,515 4,248,839
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 4,713,916 4,749,940
TOTAL ASSETS 4,774,304 4,812,750
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 10 586,869 634,374
Borrowings 11 1,459,758 -
Advances received 100,000 -

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2.146,627 634,374

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 11 580,680 1,494,845

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 580,680 1,494,845

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,727,307 2,129,219

NET ASSETS 2,046,997 2,683,531
EQUITY

Issued capital 12 5,773,563 5,499,602
Retained earnings (3,726,566) (2,816,071)

TOTAL EQUITY 2,046,997 2,683,531

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
5



DocuSign Envelope ID: 059D0645-638A-47BC-9AF1-0B9C9F3DEDES

Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd

ACN : 612 656 372

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Period Ended 31 December 2017

Ordinary Retained

Shares Earnings Total
Note $ $ $
Balance at 1 July 2017 12 5,499,602 (2,816,071) 2,683,531
Shares issued during the period 12 273,961 - 273,961
Loss attributable to members - (910,495) (910,495)
Balance at 31 December 2017 5,773,563 (3,726,566) 2,046,997

Ordinary Retained

Shares Earnings Total
Note $ $ $
Balance at 1 July 2016 12 3,500,002 (148,978) 3,351,024
Shares issued during the period 650,000 - 650,000
Loss attributable to members - (872,545) (872,545)
Balance at 31 December 2016 4,150,002 (1,021,523) 3,128,479

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 059D0645-638A-47BC-9AF1-0B9COF3DEDES
Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd

ACN : 612 656 372

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Period Ended 31 December 2017

Unaudited
31 December 31 December
2017 2016

Note $ $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipt from Grants 598,716 638
Payments to suppliers and employees (1,489,604) (436,673)
Interest received 30 -
Finance costs paid (2,268) -
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 16 (893,126) (436,035)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (7,800) (21,737)
Net cash provided used in investing activities (7,800) (21,737)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issue of shares 250,000 500,010
Proceeds from borrowings 545,593 -
Funds received in advance 100,000 -
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 895,503 500,010
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held (5,333) 42,238
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 8,996 144,027
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 5 3,663 186,265

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
7



DocusSign Envelope ID: 059D0645-638A-47BC-9AF1-0B9C9F3DEDES

Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd

ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 31 December 2017

The interim financial report covers Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd and its controlled entities (‘the Group'). Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd is
a for-profit proprietary Company, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

Each of the entities within the Group prepare their financial statements based on the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (functional currency). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Australian dollars which is the parent entity’s functional and presentation currency.

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.
The financial report was authorised for issue on 12 April 2018 by the Board of Directors.
1 Basis of Preparation

In the Directors opinion, the Company is not a reporting entity since there are unlikely to exist users of the financial
statements who are not able to command the preparation of reports tailored so as to satisfy specifically all of their
information needs. This special purpose financial report has been prepared to meet the requirements of the members of
the Company.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement requirements of the
Australian Accounting Standards and Accounting Interpretations, and the disclosure requirements of AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements, AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows, AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors and AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs modified, where
applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities.

Significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below and are
consistent with prior reporting periods unless otherwise stated.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basis for consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial position and performance of controlled entities from
the date on which control is obtained until the date that control is lost.

Intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cashflows relating to transactions between entities in
the consolidated entity have been eliminated in full for the purpose of these financial statements.

Appropriate adjustments have been made to a controlled entity’s financial position, performance and cash flows
where the accounting policies used by that entity were different from those adopted by the consolidated entity.
All controlled entities have a June financial year end.

A list of controlled entities is contained in Note 14 to the financial statements.
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entity) over which the parent has control. Control is established
when the parent is exposed to, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity.
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Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd

ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 31 December 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(b)

(©)

(d)

Income Tax

The tax expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
comprises of current income tax expense plus deferred tax expense.

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (loss) for the
period and is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities, using the
tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Current
tax liabilities (assets) are measured at the amounts expected to be paid to (recovered from) the relevant taxation
authority.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences which are determined by comparing the carrying amounts of
tax bases of assets and liabilities to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax is not provided for the following:

° The initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the
time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

° Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

° Temporary differences related to investment in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities to
the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
losses can be utilised.

Current and deferred tax is recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period
except where the tax arises from a transaction which is recognised in other comprehensive income or equity, in
which case the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income or equity respectively. No deferred tax is
recognised in the current period as the management is not able to assess with reasonable certainty that there
will be adequate future taxable profits to offset the carried forward taxable losses.

Leases

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all of the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are
charged as expenses on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term.

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over
the life of the lease term.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group and specific criteria relating to the type of revenue
as noted below, has been satisfied.



DocusSign Envelope ID: 059D0645-638A-47BC-9AF1-0B9C9F3DEDES

Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd

ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 31 December 2017

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(d)

(e)

®

(@)

Revenue and other income
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is presented net of
returns, discounts and rebates.

Other income
Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Group is entitled to it.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST.

Cash flows in the consolidated statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of
cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is classified as operating cash flows.

Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are measured using the revaluation model.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets
useful life to the Group, commencing when the asset is ready for use.

Leased assets and leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the
lease or their estimated useful life.

10



DocuSign Envelope ID: 059D0645-638A-47BC-9AF1-0B9C9F3DEDES

Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd

ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 31 December 2017

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(h)

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised initially using trade date accounting, i.e. on the date that the Group
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred).

Financial Assets
Financial assets are divided into the following categories which are described in detail below:
° loans and receivables;

° financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;

available-for-sale financial assets; and

held-to-maturity investments.

Financial assets are assigned to the different categories on initial recognition, depending on the characteristics
of the instrument and its purpose. A financial instrument’s category is relevant to the way it is measured and
whether any resulting income and expenses are recognised in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in the ‘finance income’ or ‘finance costs’ line item respectively.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise principally through the provision of goods and services to customers but
also incorporate other types of contractual monetary assets.

After initial recognition these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. Any change in their value is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s trade and other receivables fall into this category of financial instruments.

In some circumstances, the Group renegotiates repayment terms with customers which may lead to changes in
the timing of the payments, the Group does not necessarily consider the balance to be impaired, however
assessment is made on a case-by-case basis.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets:
° acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future

° designated by the entity to be carried at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition or

11



DocusSign Envelope ID: 059D0645-638A-47BC-9AF1-0B9C9F3DEDES

Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd

ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 31 December 2017

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(h) Financial instruments
° which are derivatives not qualifying for hedge accounting.
The Group has some derivatives which are designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Assets included within this category are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in finance income or expenses in profit or loss.

Any gain or loss arising from derivative financial instruments is based on changes in fair value, which is
determined by direct reference to active market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active
market exists.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity. Investments are classified as held-to-maturity if it is the intention of the Group's management to hold
them until maturity.

Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
with revenue recognised on an effective yield basis. In addition, if there is objective evidence that the investment
has been impaired, the financial asset is measured at the present value of estimated cash flows. Any changes to
the carrying amount of the investment are recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that do not qualify for inclusion in any of the
other categories of financial assets or which have been designated in this category. The Group's available-for-
sale financial assets comprise listed securities.

The investment in [enter investment name] is reported at cost less any impairment charges, as its fair value
cannot currently be reliably estimated.

All available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value, with subsequent changes in value recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Gains and losses arising from financial instruments classified as available-for-sale are only recognised in profit
or loss when they are sold or when the investment is impaired.

In the case of impairment or sale, any gain or loss previously recognised in equity is transferred to the profit or
loss.

Losses recognised in the prior period consolidated consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income resulting from the impairment of debt securities are reversed through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, if the subsequent increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ or other financial
liabilities depending on the purpose for which the liability was acquired. Although the Group uses derivative
financial instruments in economic hedges of currency and interest rate risk, it does not hedge account for these
transactions.

12
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Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd

ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 31 December 2017

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(h)

Financial instruments

The Group's financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables (including finance lease liabilities),
which are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of the reporting period the Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

Financial assets at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial assets original effective interest rate.

Impairment on loans and receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance accounts, all other impairment
losses on financial assets at amortised cost are taken directly to the asset.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses in profit or loss.
Available-for-sale financial assets

A significant or prolonged decline in value of an available-for-sale asset below its cost is objective evidence of
impairment, in this case, the cumulative loss that has been recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. Any subsequent increase in the value of
the asset is taken directly to other comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period the Group determines whether there is an evidence of an impairment
indicator for non-financial assets.

Where an indicator exists and regardless for goodwill, indefinite life intangible assets and intangible assets not
yet available for use, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.

Where assets do not operate independently of other assets, the recoverable amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit (CGU) is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value in
use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-
generating unit.

Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Reversal indicators are considered in subsequent periods for all assets which have suffered an impairment loss,
except for goodwill.

13
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Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd

ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 31 December 2017

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

(k) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares
and share options which vest immediately are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

0] New Accounting Standards and Interpretations

The AASB has issued new and amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have mandatory
application dates for future reporting periods. The Group has decided not to early adopt these Standards. The
following table summarises those future requirements, and their impact on the Group where the standard is

relevant:
Effective date for
Standard Name entity Standard's Name
AASB 15 1 January 2018 Revenue from Contracts with
customers
AASB 16 1 January 2018 Leases
Interpretation 22 1 January 2018 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration
3  Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these interim financial statements regarding
assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates.

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.
Key estimates - impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions specific to the Group that
may be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are reassessed using value-in-use
calculations which incorporate various key assumptions.

Key estimates - fair value of financial instruments

The Group has certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value. Where fair value has not able to
be determined based on quoted price, a valuation model has been used. The inputs to these models are observable,
where possible, however these techniques involve significant estimates and therefore fair value of the instruments could
be affected by changes in these assumptions and inputs.
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Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd

ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 31 December 2017

3 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments
Key estimates - receivables

The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that any of
the receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for any receivable where the entire balance is not
considered collectible. The impairment provision is based on the best information at the reporting date.

4  Revenue and Other Income

Unaudited
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
$ $
Other Income
- Other income 583,622 427,273
- Interest income 30 68
583,652 427,341

5 Cash and Cash Equivalents
31 December 30 June

2017 2017
$ $
Cash at bank and in hand 3,663 8,998
3,663 8,998

Reconciliation of cash

Cash and Cash equivalents reported in the consolidated statement of cash flows are reconciled to the equivalent items
in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

31 December 30 June

2017 2017
$ $
Cash and cash equivalents 3,663 8,998
Balance as per consolidated statement of cash flows 3,663 8,998

6 Trade and Other Receivables
31 December 30 June

2017 2017
$ $
CURRENT
GST receivable 18,007 21,794
Total current trade and other receivables 18,007 21,794

The carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term
nature of the balances.

15



DocuSign Envelope ID: 059D0645-638A-47BC-9AF1-0B9C9F3DEDES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 31 December 2017

6 Trade and Other Receivables

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable in the financial
statements.

7  Other Assets
31 December 30 June

2017 2017
$ $
CURRENT
Prepayments 12,318 5,618
Other asset 26,400 26,400
38,718 32,018

8 Property, plant and equipment
31 December 30 June

2017 2017

$ $
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Office equipment
At cost 36,692 36,371
Accumulated depreciation (30,642) -
Total office equipment 6,050 36,371
Computer equipment
At cost 107,092 103,371
Accumulated depreciation (99,254) (99,254)
Total computer equipment 7,838 4,117
Computer software
At cost 151,408 147,508
Total computer software 151,408 147,508
Leasehold Improvements
At cost 313,105 313,105
Total plant and equipment 478,401 501,101
Total property, plant and equipment 478,401 501,101
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Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd

ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 31 December 2017

Intangible Assets

Goodwill
Cost

Net carrying value

Patent and Trade Mark
Cost

Net carrying value

Company formation cost

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net carrying value

Total Intangibles

Trade and Other Payables

Current

Trade payables
Payable to ATO
Other payables

31 December 30 June
2017 2017
$ $
4,025,914 4,025,914
4,025,914 4,025,914
128,285 128,285
128,285 128,285
133,239 133,239
(51,923) (38,599)
81,316 94,640
4,235,515 4,248,839
31 December 30 June
2017 2017
$ $
347,873 232,240
152,595 69,909
86,402 332,225
586,870 634,374

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days. The carrying
value of trade and other payables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term nature of

the balances.

Borrowings

CURRENT
Unsecured liabilities:

Convertible notes
Other loans

Total current borrowings

31 December 30 June
2017 2017
Note $ $
(@ 1,400,000 -
59,758 -
1,459,758 -
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ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 31 December 2017

11 Borrowings
31 December 30 June

2017 2017
$ $
NON-CURRENT
Unsecured liabilities:
Borrowings - Related party 580,680 1,494,845
Total non-current borrowings 580,680 1,494,845
Total borrowings 2,040,438 1,494,845

(a) Terms of Convertible Notes

Convertible notes A and B are non-interest bearing and are convertible at 2 shares for each principal dollar
amount outstanding. 7% interest per annum is payable in the event of default. Loan is due for repayment or
convesion into ordinary shares by 11 May 2018.

12 Issued Capital
31 December 30 June

2017 2017
$ $
27,260,978 (2017: 27,000,000) Ordinary shares 5,773,563 5,499,602

Ordinary shares
31 December 30 June

2017 2017
No. No.
At the beginning of the reporting period 27,000,000 19,000,000
Shares issued during the period 260,978 8,000,000
At the end of the reporting period 27,260,978 27,000,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Company.
On a show of hands at meetings of the Company, each holder of ordinary shares has one vote in person or by proxy,
and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

The Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its shares.
13 Capital and Leasing Commitments
Operating Leases

Operating leases are in place for property leased [enter type of assets] and normally have a term between 1 and 2
years. Lease payments are increased on an annual basis to reflect market rentals.
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ACN : 612 656 372

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 31 December 2017

14 Interests in Subsidiaries

Composition of the Group

Principal place of Percentage
business / Country of Owned (%)*  Percentage
Incorporation 31 December Owned (%)*
2017 30 June 2017
Subsidiaries:
Jaxsta Enterprise Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Jaxsta Inc United States of America 100 100
*The percentage of ownership interest held is equivalent to the percentage voting rights for all subsidiaries.
15 Contingencies
In the opinion of the Directors, the Company did not have any contingencies at 31 December 2017
(30 June 2017:None).
16 Cash Flow Information
(a) Reconciliation of result for the period to cashflows from operating activities
Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Unaudited
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
$ $
Loss for the period (910,495) (872,545)
Cash flows excluded from profit attributable to operating
activities
Non-cash flows in loss:
- depreciation 43,966 -
- other non-cash adjustment 17,492 -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
- (increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 21,794 (21,018)
- (increase)/decrease in other assets (6,700) (19,245)
- increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (59,183) 476,773
Cashflows from operations (893,126) (436,035)

17 Events after the end of the Reporting Period
Company obatined a further loan of $100,000 from a related entity.

A Heads of Agreement has been entered into for the sale of existing oridnary shares of the Company.

Except for the above, no other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial period which
significantly affected or could significantly affect the operations of the Group, the results of those operations or the state

of affairs of the Group in future financial years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Period Ended 31 December 2017
18 Statutory Information

The registered office of the company is:
Jaxsta Holdings Pty Ltd
Level 2, 1 York Street
SYDNEY NSW 2000

The principal place of business is:
Suite 2, Level 1
113-115 Oxford Street
DARLINGHURST NSW 2010
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Directors' Declaration

The directors have determined that the Company is not a reporting entity and that this special purpose interim financial
report should be prepared in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 2 to the interim financial statements.

The directors of the Company declare that:

1. The interim financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 4 to 20, are in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001 and:

(@) comply with Accounting Standards as stated in Note 1; and

(b) give atrue and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 31 December 2017 and of its performance for the
year ended on that date in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 2 to the interim financial
statements.

2. Inthe directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

(i L Sl

B33386ESB8CAB44C .

Director

Jacqueline Samantha Louez Schoorl

Dated 12 April 2018
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AND BUSINESS ADVISORS Web: www.dfkpa.com.au

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
JAXSTA HOLDINGS PTY LTD
ACN: 612 656 372

Opinion

We have audited the financial report, being a special purpose financial report of Jaxsta
Holdings Pty Ltd (the “Company”) and its controlled entities (“Group”) which comprises
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flow for
the period then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Group is in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:

0 giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 31 December
2017 and of its performance for the period then ended; and

o complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note
1, and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board'’s
APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) that are relevant to our
audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which
has been given to the directors of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the
directors as at the time of this auditor’s report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
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Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting.
The financial report has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the directors’ financial
reporting responsibilities under the Corporations Act 2001. As a result, the financial report
may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that
gives a true and fair view and have determined that the basis of preparation described in
Note 1 to the financial report is appropriate to meet the requirements of the Corporations Act
2001 and is appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The directors’ responsibility also
includes such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of a financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;
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e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control;

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by directors;

¢ conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors, regarding among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

/9 hetd S LA

PA AUDIT PTY LTD

KATHAL SPENCE
DIRECTOR
Fremantle, Western Australia

12 April 2018
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